
 

 

Mayor: Ann Nevero  

Vice Mayor Sharon Crull  

City Council: Greg Pitts  

Mario Sculatti  

Peter White 
 
 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 

ST. HELENA CITY COUNCIL 

VINTAGE HALL BOARD ROOM – SECOND FLOOR 

465 MAIN STREET, ST. HELENA  

SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 

5:30 PM CLOSED SESSION 

6:00 PM REGULAR MEETING 
 

PLEASE NOTE:  Any person who wishes to speak regarding an item on the agenda 

or make a comment under the “Oral Communication” portion of the agenda may 

voluntarily complete a “Speaker Card” and submit it to the City Clerk BEFORE 

that portion of the agenda is called.  Speaker cards are available on the table in back 

of the room. Please observe the time limit of three minutes.  
 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS PERTAINING TO THE CLOSED SESSION 

 

4. CLOSED SESSION 
 

a. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—SIGNIFICANT EXPOSURE  

pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9; (One case.) 

 

5. OPEN SESSION – COUNCIL WILL RETURN TO OPEN SESSION AND 

ANNOUNCE ACTIONS TAKEN IF ANY (6:00 P.M.) 

6. PUBLIC FORUM: Members of the public are entitled to speak on matters of 

municipal concern not on the agenda during Public Forum. Each person’s comments shall 

be limited to 3 minutes. Each person is entitled to speak on any non-agendized item only 

once at any meeting. Brief questions by Councilmembers for clarifications may be posed 

and answered, and Councilmembers may make requests that items be placed on future 

agendas, but in accordance with s t a t e  l aw, no substantive discussion or action may take 
place unless and until the matter properly appears on the agenda. 

7. REPORTS BY STAFF AND CITY COUNCIL, FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS, and 

AB 1234 REPORTS: Reports by staff and/or Councilmembers on items of general 

interest. Brief questions for clarification may be posed and answered, and Councilmembers 

may request that items be placed on a future agenda. Except under certain circumstances, 



 

 

the Brown Act prohibits any other discussion or action by the City Council. 

CONSENT ITEMS:  Members of the Council or the public may ask that any items be 

considered individually for purposes of considering alternative action, for extended discussion, 

or for public comment. Unless that is done, one motion may be used to adopt all recommended 

actions. (Roll Call Vote) 
 

8. Consideration of second reading Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment to Municipal Code 

Title 17; Chapter 17.124, Section 17.124.070 to provide for consistency in standards for 

driveways and access drives between Title 15, Building & Construction and Title 17, 

Zoning. The Planning Commission has recommended approval of the amendments to 

Chapter 17.08 and Chapter 17.124. (CEQA Exemption Section 15061 (b)(5)) 

Lead Staff: Victor Carniglia, Acting Planning Director 

            Recommended Action: Adopt 

 

9. Consideration of second reading for an Ordinance amending the regulations set forth in 

Article II of Chapter 13.04 of Title 13 of the St. Helena Municipal Code governing Water 

Shortage Emergencies to incorporate newly state-mandated water use restrictions and 

related penalties.  

Lead Staff: Jennifer Phillips, City Manager 

Recommended Action: Adopt 

 

10. Consideration of accepting the work and directing the Filing of the Notice of Completion 

for CIP Project W-42 Supervisory Control and Data System (SCADA) 

Lead Staff: Steve Palmer, Interim Public Works Director 
Recommended Action: Approve   

11. Consideration of resolution finding an exemption from CEQA; approving and adopting the 

plans, specifications and working details; and authorizing the bid request for the 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Pond 1A repair project. 
Lead Staff: Steve Palmer, Interim Public Works Director 

Recommended Action: Approve 

 

12. Consideration of resolution approving Amendment No. 1 for additional on-call consulting 

services with Bennett Engineering Services related to the Wastewater Treatment Plant Pond 

1A regulatory assistance, technical expertise, field investigation and construction support; 

adding $50,000 for a total amended amount not to exceed $80,000. 

Lead Staff: Steve Palmer, Interim Public Works Director 

Recommended Action: Approve 

 

13. Consideration/action regarding notice of intent to sell the affordable housing unit at 1641 

Voorhees Circle and direction as to whether the City desires to exercise its option to 

purchase said property 

Lead Staff: Jennifer Phillips, City Manager  

 

SCHEDULED MATTERS 

 

14. Consideration of Resolution appointing and filling expired terms to the Library Board of 

Trustees, Parks and Recreation Commission, Planning Commission and the Tree 



 

 

Committee Lead Staff: Cindy Black, Interim City Clerk 

Estimated time: 15 minutes 

 

15. Preliminary review of Conceptual Plans submitted by Carl Doumani for a Resort Hotel 

(“The Inn at St Helena”) consisting of 84 Hotel Rooms, proposed to be located on a 5.93 

Acre parcel, along with agricultural  uses on adjacent parcels consisting of  4.11 Acres, for 

a total of 10.04 Acres.  The Site is Located North of Mills Lane and East of Hwy 29 

Lead Staff: Victor Carniglia, Acting Planning Director 

Estimated time: 10 minutes 

 

ADJOURNMENT The next Regular City Council meeting is scheduled for September 23, 2014, at 

6:00 p.m. in the Vintage Hall Board Room located at 465 Main Street. This agenda was posted at 

City Hall, 1480 Main Street, and at Vintage Hall, 465 Main Street, St. Helena, California on 

September 4, 2014. 

 

 

Kathy Robinson, Senior Management Analyst 

 

CHALLENGING DECISIONS OF CITY ENTITIES 

 

The time limit within which to commence any lawsuit or legal challenge to any quasi-adjudicative 

decision made by the City of St. Helena is governed by Section 1094.6 of the Code of Civil Procedure, 
unless a shorter limitation period is specified by any other provision, including without limitation 
Government Code section 65009 applicable to many land use and zoning decisions, Government Code 
section 66499.37 applicable to the Subdivision Map Act, and Public Resources Code section 21167 
applicable to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  Under Section 1094.6, any lawsuit or 

legal challenge to any quasi-adjudicative decision made by the City must be filed no later than the 90th 

day following the date on which such decision becomes final.  Any lawsuit or legal challenge, which is 
not filed within that 90-day period, will be barred.  Government Code section 65009 and 66499.37, and 
Public Resources Code section 21167, impose shorter limitations periods and requirements, including 
timely service in addition to filing. 

 
If a person wishes to challenge the above actions in court, they may be limited to raising only those 

issues they or someone else raised at the meeting described in this notice, or in written correspondence 

delivered to the City of St. Helena, at or prior to the meeting. In addition, judicial challenge may be 

limited or barred where the interested party has not sought and exhausted all available administrative 

remedies. 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL RECEIVED AFTER THE POSTING OF THE AGENDA 
 

Any supplemental writings or documents distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on 

this Agenda, after the posting of the Agenda, will be available for public review in the City Clerk’s Office 

located at 1480 Main Street, St. Helena, California, during normal business hours.  In addition, such 

writings or documents will be made available on the City’s web site at http://cityofsthelena.org  and will be 

available for public review at the respective meeting. 

http://cityofsthelena.org/


 

THIS PAGE  

INTENTIONALLY  

BLANK 



Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments –  Chapter 17.124 
August 26, 2014 

City Council 

STAFF REPORT 
 

 DATE: September 9, 2014 
 

 TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

 FROM:  Victor Carniglia, Interim Planning Director                       Item No: 8 
    

RE:   Second reading of Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments to Municipal Code Title 17:  
Chapter 17.124, Section 17.124.070 to provide for consistency in standards for 
driveways and access drives between Title 15, Building & Construction and Title 17, 
Zoning.  

 

CEQA Exemption Section 15061 (b)(5). 
  
 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve on a second reading, and thereby adopt the 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments to Municipal Code Title 17:  Chapter 17.124, Section 
17.124.070 to provide for consistency in standards for driveways and access drives between Title 
15, Building & Construction and Title 17, Zoning.  
 
The City Council introduced the proposed ordinance amendments on a first reading on August 
26, 2014. 
 
ATTACHMENTS  

1. Chapter 17.124: Driveways and Access Drive Amendments. 
 



1 
 

CITY OF ST. HELENA 
ORDINANCE NO._________ 

 
AMENDING SECTION 17.124.070 OF CHAPTER 17.124 OF TITLE 17 OF THE ST. 

HELENA MUNICIPAL CODE TO PROVIDE FOR CONSISTENCY IN STANDARDS 
FOR DRIVEWAYS AND ACCESS DRIVES BETWEEN TITLE 15, BUILDING & 

CONSTRUCTION AND TITLE 17, ZONING. 
 

The City Council of the City of St. Helena does hereby ordain as follows: 

SECTION 1:  Amendment of Municipal Code Section 17.124.070. Title 17 (Zoning), Chapter 
17.124 (Parking and Loading Requirements), Section 17.08.070 (Standards for driveways and access 
drives) is amended to read as follows (deletions shown by strikethrough and additions shown by 
underline): 

17.124.070 Standards for driveways and access drives. 

A. Residential Driveways. A residential driveway provides direct vehicular access from a public 
street, or a private street developed to city standards, to the required parking for an individual 
dwelling unit. That portion which connects a residential driveway to the street is a driveway 
approach and is typically located in the right-of-way. The intent of these standards is to provide 
for emergency vehicle and/or fire equipment access: 

1. A residential driveway shall have a minimum length of twenty-four (24) feet (measured from 
the property line) which may be reduced to not less than twenty (20) feet in length if a roll-up 
garage door or carport is utilized. A residential driveway shall have a minimum width of ten 
(10) feet. The standard residential driveway approach shall be a minimum of ten (10) feet in 
width and a maximum of twenty (20) feet as shown in the city of St. Helena Street, Storm 
Drain and Sidewalk Standards. 
 

2. Residential driveways in the woodlands and watershed zoning district, or elsewhere as 
deemed necessary by the fire chief/fire code official.  
 

3. Providing access to a lot which does not have public street frontage or are greater than one 
hundred (100) feet in length shall meet the standards for an access drive as set forth in 
Chapter 15.36.100 of the City municipal code.  

 
B. Standards for Access Drives. 

1. An access drive is a way located outside of the public right-of-way that provides vehicular 
access between the public street and the required parking for more than one lot, or for one lot 
if the length of the drive is greater than one hundred (100) feet. 
 

2. The design of all features relating to access drives is subject to review and approval of the 
public works director and fire chief/fire code official and may require a grading permit.  The 
applicant shall submit a detailed, dimensioned plan with accurate topographic background 

KathyR
Typewritten Text
ITEM 8  ATTACHMENT 1



2 
 

showing the layout of the proposed access drive, parking and other related features on the site 
being developed. These features may include curbs, gutters, sidewalks, drainage facilities, 
pavement structural section, traffic circulation signing and markings. The plan shall also 
include finished grades. The access drive shall be designed to serve traffic loads as specified 
in Chapter 15.36.  Where the access is determined by the public works director to serve 
traffic loads equivalent to those typically encountered on public streets, the public works 
director shall require the design of the access drive to meet public street standards. 

 
a. All access drives shall be designed for two-way traffic, unless specific approval is 

obtained from the public works director and fire chief/fire code official to allow one-way 
access drives.  
 

b. Access drives in areas as deemed necessary by the fire chief/fire code official, shall be 
paved as noted in Chapter 15.36. 

 
c. To avoid congestion at the entrance of a property from the street or access drive, no on-

site parking space or gate shall be allowed within the initial thirty (30) feet of the edge of 
pavement of the access drive, drive aisle or property line, or location as determined by 
the Public Works Director in conjunction with the Fire Chief. 

 
d. On-site turnarounds or circulation patterns meeting design criteria set forth in Chapter 

15.36 shall be provided that will enable the access drives to function properly for traffic 
and emergency vehicles. Backing out of access drives shall not be allowed. 

 
e. The following widths are minimums that will allow for the safe passage of emergency 

vehicles. Width for required parking areas must be added to the access drives. Widths are 
also as specified in Chapter 15.36 and are applied based on length of the access drive. 

 
f. The minimum vertical clearance shall be fourteen (14) feet at all points across the 

required width of the access drive. 
 

g. Emergency vehicle turnouts shall be provided per Chapter 15.36.   
 

h. An adequately sized firefighting operational area shall be provided as required by 
Chapter 15.36.  

 
i. Access drives grades shall follow the requirements of Chapter 15.36 

 
j.    Access drives shall be inspected annually by the fire chief/fire code official to ensure that 

landscaping or other obstructions do not hinder emergency vehicle access. (Ord. 05-4 § 1 
(part): Ord. 02-6 § 10; prior code § 27.252) 

SECTION 2:  Purpose.  The purpose of this amendment is to establish consistency between the 
recently adopted the 2013 California Building Code and Municipal Code Title 17 – Zoning, 
Chapter 17.124, Section 17.124.070. This section is specific to standards for access drives and 
driveways. 



3 
 

SECTION 3: Compliance with CEQA. The City Council hereby finds that the action to adopt 
this amendment to the Municipal Code Title 17 Chapter 17.124 to provide consistency in 
standards between title 15 (Building and Construction) and Title 17 (Zoning) is exempt from the 
provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000, 
et seq.) (CEQA) because the action is exempt from environmental review pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3). The activity is covered by the general rule which exempts 
activities that can be seen with certainty to have no possibility for causing a significant effect on 
the environment.  

SECTION 4:   Severability. The City Council hereby declares every section, paragraph, 
sentence, cause and phrase is severable. If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 
this ordinance is for any reason found to be invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity, or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of the remaining sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses or phrases. 

SECTION 5:   Inclusion in the St. Helena Municipal Code. It is the intention of the St. Helena 
City Council that the text in Sections 1 be made a part of the St. Helena Municipal Code and that 
the text may be renumbered or relettered and the word "Ordinance" may be changed to 
"Section," "Chapter," or such other appropriate word or phrase to accomplish this intention. 

SECTION 6: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force 30 days after its 
adoption, and a summary of this ordinance shall be published once with the names of the 
members of the Council voting for and against the ordinance in the St. Helena Star, a newspaper 
of general circulation published in the city of St. Helena. 
 

THE FOREGOING ORDINANCE was introduced at a regular meeting of the St. Helena City 
Council on the 26th day of August 2014 and was adopted at a regular meeting of the St. Helena 
City Council on the ____ day of __________ 2014 by the following vote: 

AYES:    

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN:  

       ATTEST: 

__________________________________  __________________________________ 

Ann Nevero, Mayor   Cindy Black, Interim City Clerk 

 



STAFF REPORT 

  
 

 
  
DATE: September 9, 2014 
  

TO: Mayor and City Council         Item No: 9 
   
FROM: Jennifer Phillips, City Manager  
   
RE: Second Reading of Ordinance Amending City of St. Helena Municipal Code 

Section 13.04.230B  Phase I Water Regulations to add recently state-mandated 
water use restrictions  

 

BACKGROUND 
On October 25, 2011 City Council approved Ordinance No. 2011-7 AMENDING ARTICLE 2 
OF CHAPTER 13.04 OF THE CITY CODE RELATING TO WATERSHORTAGE 
EMERGENCIES.  In response to the severe drought in California, the State Water Resources 
Control Board has mandated certain water use restrictions for all water providers in the state by 
an emergency action revising Title 23 of the California Code of Regulations.  The emergency 
action became effective July 28, 2014.  Most of those restrictions are already in the City’s 
Municipal Code Article 2, Chapter 13.04. A few items are not. On August 26, 2014 the City 
Council introduced and held the first reading to amend the Municipal Code to include the 
mandated items. 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
The Amendment to the City of St. Helena Municipal Code Section 13.04.230B Phase I Water 
Regulations removes paragraphs 13.04.230.B.4 and 13.04.230.B.5 and adds the following 
restrictions that are mandated by the state: 
 
4.    The application of potable water to any driveway or sidewalk is prohibited, unless 
conditions of public health hazard are documented. 
 
5.     Using a hose that dispenses potable water to wash a motor vehicle is prohibited, unless 
the hose is fitted with a shut-off nozzle.  
 
8.  Using potable water to water outdoor landscapes in a manner that causes runoff to 
adjacent property, non-irrigated areas, private and public walkways, roadways parking lots or 
structures is prohibited 
 
9.     Using potable water in a fountain or decorative water feature is prohibited, unless the 
water is part of a recirculating system. 



10.   The taking of any action prohibited in this section, in addition to any other applicable 
civil or criminal penalties, is an infraction, punishable by a fine of up to five hundred dollars 
($500) for each day in which the violation occurs. 
 
It is imperative that the City adopt these regulations immediately to avoid incurring any penalties 
or fines from the State for non-compliance.  In order to ensure immediate enforcement, staff is 
proposing that the City adopt the amendments on both an urgency and a regular basis.  The basis 
for declaring the urgency are set forth below: 
 

Pursuant to the police powers delegated to it by Article XI, Section 7 of the California 
Constitution, the City may make and enforce laws that promote the public health, safety 
and general welfare of its residents.  The State of California is experiencing record dry 
conditions, with 2014 projected to become the driest year on record.  The state’s water 
supplies have dipped to alarming levels, indicated by: snowpack in California’s 
mountains is approximately 20 percent of the normal average for this date; California’s 
largest water reservoirs have very low water levels for this time of year; California’s 
major river systems, including the Sacramento and San Joaquin rivers, have significantly 
reduced surface water flows; and groundwater levels throughout the state have dropped 
significantly. 
 
Dry conditions and lack of precipitation present urgent problems: drinking water supplies 
are at risk in many California communities; fewer crops can be cultivated and farmers’ 
long-term investments are put at risk; low-income communities heavily dependent on 
agricultural employment will suffer heightened unemployment and economic hardship; 
animals and plants that rely on California’s rivers, including many species in danger of 
extinction, will be threatened; and the risk of wildfires across the state is greatly 
increased.  Extremely dry conditions have persisted since 2012 and may continue beyond 
this year and more regularly into the future, based on scientific projections regarding the 
impact of climate change on California’s snowpack. 
 
On January 17, 2014, the Governor declared a State of Emergency exists in the State of 
California due to current drought conditions under the California Emergency Services 
Act.  Said declaration, among other things, call for: (i) a statewide water conservation 
campaign; (ii) local water suppliers to implement water shortage contingency plans; (iii) 
state agencies to implement water use reduction plans, modifications of diversions and 
releases, and daily drought updates; and (iv) a voluntary twenty percent (20%) reduction 
in water use across the state.  On April 25, 2014, the Governor issued a proclamation of a 
continued state of emergency under the California Emergency Services Act based on 
continued drought conditions and directed the State Water Resources Control Board 
(“State Board”) to adopt emergency regulations to ensure that urban water suppliers 



implement drought response plans to limit outdoor irrigation and other wasteful water 
practices. 
 
The drought conditions that formed the basis for the Governor’s proclamations continue 
to exist and worsen. The present year is critically dry and was immediately preceded by 
two or more consecutive below normal, dry, or critically dry years.  The drought 
conditions will likely continue for the foreseeable future and additional action by both the 
State Water Resources Control Board (“State Board”) and local water suppliers is 
necessary to further promote conservation and conserve California’s limited water 
resources. 
 
As directed by the Governor’s April 25, 2014 proclamation, the State Board adopted 
emergency regulations pursuant to Water Code section 1058.5 (the “Emergency 
Regulations”).  The Emergency Regulations took effect on July 28, 2014, and impose 
several affirmative duties on the City as a local water supplier.   The City’s existing water 
shortage emergency regulations are set forth in Chapter 13.04 of the St. Helena 
Municipal Code.  While those regulations already include many of the requirements 
mandated by the Emergency Regulations, there are some additional requirements that the 
City must implement immediately.   
 
The St. Helena Municipal Code is in need of revision to protect the public against 
potential negative health, safety, and welfare impacts and to address potential 
deficiencies in its Code associated with water shortage emergencies.  Further, it is 
imperative that these revisions take effect immediately because of the State of Emergency 
that exists statewide due to the current drought conditions and to preserve and protect the 
City’s dwindling water resources.  Failure to adopt the revisions set forth in the urgency 
ordinance on an urgency basis would jeopardize the public health, safety, and general 
welfare by rendering the state adopted mandatory conservation measures meaningless—
since there would be no enforcement mechanism to deter customers from violating the 
mandatory measures—and would expose the City to potential fines a further jeopardize 
the City’s already dwindling water resources. 
 

Staff believes the foregoing findings give the City Council the necessary basis to declare that 
there is a current and immediately threat to the public health, safety, and welfare that justifies 
adopting the state-mandated regulations on an urgency basis.  The urgency ordinance must be 
adopted by a 4/5th vote of the Council.  The regular ordinance will be enacted using the standard 
procedures, with Council holding first reading this evening, reading the title of the ordinance and 
waiving full reading, and introducing the regular ordinance.  The regular ordinance will be 
brought back for second reading and adoption at a subsequent meeting. 
 



FISCAL IMPACT 
The City will incur minor costs associated with noticing water customers of the new regulations. 
The impact of additional enforcement can be partially offset by fines from violators of the 
regulations. Of note, the City has been able to achieve a high level of compliance in recent 
months with voluntary compliance.  The taking of any action prohibited in subdivision (a) of this 
section, in addition to any other applicable civil or criminal penalties, is an infraction, punishable 
by a fine of up to five hundred dollars ($500) for each day in which the violation occurs. 
 
RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION 
Staff recommends that the Council: 

1. Hold second reading and read the title of Ordinance No. ___ to amend Article 2 of 
Chapter 13.04 of the City of St. Helena Municipal Code by amending Section 13.04.220.B 
to remove existing paragraphs 4 and 5  and add new paragraphs 4, 5, 8, 9 and 10 relating to 
the State Mandated Water Regulation. 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS 

1. Regular Ordinance Amending St. Helena Municipal Code Chapter 13.04. 



1 

ITEM NO. 9  ATTACHMENT 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF ST. HELENA, CA 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-___ 
 

AMENDING ARTICLE 2 OF CHAPTER 13.04 OF TITLE 
13 OF THE ST. HELENA MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING 

TO WATER SHORTAGE EMERGENCIES  
 

SECTION 1:  Findings.  The City Council hereby determines that: 
 
A. Pursuant to the police powers delegated to it by Article XI, Section 7 of the California 

Constitution, the City of St. Helena (“City”) may make and enforce laws that promote the 
public health, safety and general welfare of its residents. 

 
B. The State of California is experiencing record dry conditions, with 2014 projected to 

become the driest year on record. 
 

C. The state’s water supplies have dipped to alarming levels, indicated by: snowpack in 
California’s mountains is approximately 20 percent of the normal average for this date; 
California’s largest water reservoirs have very low water levels for this time of year; 
California’s major river systems, including the Sacramento and San Joaquin rivers, have 
significantly reduced surface water flows; and groundwater levels throughout the state 
have dropped significantly. 
 

D. Dry conditions and lack of precipitation present urgent problems: drinking water supplies 
are at risk in many California communities; fewer crops can be cultivated and farmers’ 
long-term investments are put at risk; low-income communities heavily dependent on 
agricultural employment will suffer heightened unemployment and economic hardship; 
animals and plants that rely on California’s rivers, including many species in danger of 
extinction, will be threatened; and the risk of wildfires across the state is greatly increased. 
 

E. Extremely dry conditions have persisted since 2012 and may continue beyond this year 
and more regularly into the future, based on scientific projections regarding the impact of 
climate change on California’s snowpack. 
 

F. On January 17, 2014, the Governor declared a State of Emergency exists in the State of 
California due to current drought conditions UNDER THE California Emergency Services 
Act.  Said declaration, among other things, call for: (i) a statewide water conservation 
campaign; (ii) local water suppliers to implement water shortage contingency plans; (iii) 
state agencies to implement water use reduction plans, modifications of diversions and 
releases, and daily drought updates; and (iv) a voluntary twenty percent (20%) reduction 
in water use across the state. 
 

G. On April 25, 2014, the Governor issued a proclamation of a continued state of emergency 
under the California Emergency Services Act based on continued drought conditions and 



2 

ITEM NO. 9  ATTACHMENT 1 

 

directed the State Water Resources Control Board (“State Board”) to adopt emergency 
regulations to ensure that urban water suppliers implement drought response plans to limit 
outdoor irrigation and other wasteful water practices. 
 

H. The magnitude of the severe drought conditions presents threats beyond the control of the 
services, personnel, equipment and facilities of any single local government and require 
the combined forces of a mutual aid region or regions to combat. 
 

I. The drought conditions that formed the basis for the Governor’s proclamations continue to 
exist and worsen. The present year is critically dry and was immediately preceded by two 
or more consecutive below normal, dry, or critically dry years. 
 

J. The drought conditions will likely continue for the foreseeable future and additional action 
by both the State Water Resources Control Board (“State Board”) and local water 
suppliers is necessary to further promote conservation and conserve California’s limited 
water resources. 
 

K. As directed by the Governor’s April 25, 2014 proclamation, the State Board adopted 
emergency regulations pursuant to Water Code section 1058.5 (the “Emergency 
Regulations”).  The Emergency Regulations took effect on July 28, 2014, and impose 
several affirmative duties on the City as a local water supplier. 

 
L. The City’s existing water shortage emergency regulations are set forth in Chapter 13.04 of 

the St. Helena Municipal Code.  While those regulations already include many of the 
requirements mandated by the Emergency Regulations, there are some additional 
requirements that the City must implement immediately.   
 

M. The City Council hereby determines that the St. Helena Municipal Code is in need of 
revision to protect the public against potential negative health, safety, and welfare impacts 
and to address potential deficiencies in its Code associated with water shortage 
emergencies. 
 

SECTION 2. Environmental Review.  The City Council finds that this ordinance is not 
subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2) 
(the activity will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the 
environment) and 15060(c)(3) (the activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378) of the 
CEQA Guidelines, California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, because it has no 
potential for resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly; rather it 
prevents changes in the environment by imposing mandatory conservation regulations and 
associated penalties to protect and preserve the City’s water resources during the current 
drought conditions.  Further, the adoption of this ordinance is categorically exempt under 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15308 for actions taken by regulatory agencies to ensure the 
protection of the environment and Section 15061(b)(3) because the City Council can see with 
certainty that there is no possibility the adoption of this ordinance will have a significant 
effect on the environment. 
 



3 

ITEM NO. 9  ATTACHMENT 1 

 

SECTION 3:   Amendment to SHMC. Section 13.04.230 of Chapter 13.04 of Title 13 of the 
St. Helena Municipal Code is hereby amended as shown on Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
SECTION 4:   Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such decision will not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
this ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and 
each and every section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase not declared invalid or 
unconstitutional without regard to whether any portion of the ordinance would be 
subsequently declared invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 5:   Inclusion in the St. Helena Municipal Code. It is the intention of the St. 
Helena City Council that the text in Exhibit A of this ordinance be made a part of the St. 
Helena Municipal Code and that the text may be renumbered or re-lettered and the word 
"Ordinance" may be changed to "Section," "Chapter," or such other appropriate word or 
phrase to accomplish this intention. 
 
SECTION 6:  Effective Date.  This ordinance will take effect 30 days after adoption. 
 
SECTION 7:   Publication.  The City Clerk is directed to cause this ordinance to be published 
in the manner required by law 
 
THE FOREGOING URGENCY ORDINANCE was introduced at a regular meeting on 
August 26, 2014 of the St. Helena City Council and adopted on the        day of September 9, 
2014, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:    
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
             

Ann Nevero, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
       
CITY OF ST. HELENA 
 
 
       
Cindy Black, Interim City Clerk 
 
 
 



4 

ITEM NO. 9  ATTACHMENT 1 

 

I, CINDY BLACK, INTERIM CITY CLERK of the City of St. Helena, California, do hereby 
certify that the foregoing Ordinance was duly introduced on August 26, 2014, and adopted at 
a regular meeting of the City Council on the           day of September, 2014 by the following 
vote: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 
       
Cindy Black, Interim City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Thomas B. Brown, City Attorney 
  



5 

ITEM NO. 9  ATTACHMENT 1 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Section 13.04.230 of Chapter 13.04 of the St. Helena Municipal Code is hereby amended to 
read in its entirety as set forth below (additions are shown in underline and deletions are 
shown in strikethrough: 
 

13.04.230 Phase I Water Regulations 
 

A.    The criteria for establishing Phase I shall be that: 
 

1.       The Supply/Usage  Balance, as calculated  at the beginning of the fiscal year, is in 
Deficit. 

 
2.                                        The volume of water to be delivered by the City ofNapa in any fiscal year will not 
exceed 400 AF. 

 
3.        The volume of water anticipated to be available prior to the next November 1, as 
determined by the Director of Public Works, is not sufficient to meet projected demand 
through November 1 without demand reduction measures being implemented; or 

 
4.      Conditions requiring the establishment  of a Phase II water emergency, as determined 
by the Director of Public Works, appear to be imminent. 

 
  B.      During the Phase I water emergency, the following mandatory conservation measures 
by customers of the department shall be enforced by the department and publicized by the 
city: 

1.    All customers must be in compliance with all water use efficiency requirements of 
Chapter 13.12 (Water Use Efficiency and Use Guidelines). If a customer is found to be out of 
compliance with any part of Chapter 13.12 or provisions of these water shortage emergency 
requirements, the customer must immediately install the appropriate water-saving devices in 
their plumbing, appliances, or improvements, or take other such actions to bring about full 
compliance. 

2.    All customers are prohibited from expanding or installing new water-using appliances, 
plumbing or improvements, such as lawns, gardens, landscaping, pools, sprinkler irrigation 
systems, wash-down equipment, larger washing machines or garbage disposal units where the 
installation may result in an increase in water use. Replacement of existing appliances, 
plumbing, or improvements shall be allowed only if the change can be documented to the 
satisfaction of the director of public works to result in more efficient water using fixtures or 
systems. 

3.    Any new water connection for new development must offset new demand by an amount 
of water equal to the new demand on the city water system using the methodology defined in 

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/sthelena/html/StHelena13/StHelena1312.html#13.12
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/sthelena/html/StHelena13/StHelena1312.html#13.12


6 

ITEM NO. 9  ATTACHMENT 1 

 

Section 13.12.050. The offset must be clearly demonstrated, to the satisfaction of the director 
of public works. 

4.    The application of potable water to any driveway or sidewalk is prohibited, unless 
conditions of public health hazard are documented. 
5.    Using a hose that dispenses potable water to wash a motor vehicle is prohibited, unless 
the hose is fitted with a shut-off nozzle.  
6.    Customers shall install new landscaping in existing or new development that is water 
efficient within the meaning of the water efficient landscape ordinance. 

7.    Customers shall cease the operation of air-cooling outdoor misting systems using treated 
water supplied by the city, unless on a timer 

8.    Using potable water to water outdoor landscapes in a manner that causes runoff to 
adjacent property, non-irrigated areas, private and public walkways, roadways parking lots 
or structures is prohibited 
 
9.    Using potable water in a fountain or decorative water feature is prohibited, unless the 
water is part of a recirculating system. 
 
10.    In accordance with Section 864 of Title 23 of the California Code of Regulations or 
any successor regulation, the taking of any action prohibited in this section, in addition to 
any other applicable  civil or criminal penalties (including the penalties set forth in 
Sections 13.04.290 and 13.04.310 of this chapter), is an infraction, punishable by a fine of 
up to five hundreddollars ($500) for each day in which the violation occurs. 
 
C.   During the Phase I water emergency, the following actions shall be carried out by the 
city: 
 

1. The city shall notify customers that one or more of the criteria for Phase I has been 
met, and shall identify and explain in sufficient detail each criterion that forms a basis 
for establishing a Phase I water emergency. 

 
2. The city shall notify customers  of the water usage allocation for each account that 

would  be allowed  under  a Phase  II water  emergency  if a  Phase  II water  
emergency appears to be imminent. 

 
3. The city shall advise customers of the Phase I water shortage and of restrictions and 

opportunities  for  exception  permits  that  are available  under  Section  13.04.280  of 
this chapter if a Phase II water emergency appears to be imminent. 

 
4. Any  applicant  for,  or  holder  of,  a  building  permit  for  construction  that  may  be 

affected by the existence of this or future water emergency phases shall be informed 
of the  impact  of  such  phases,  but  lack  of  such  notice  shall  not  permit  a  new  
water connection that is otherwise prohibited. 

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/sthelena/html/StHelena13/StHelena1312.html#13.12.050


7 

ITEM NO. 9  ATTACHMENT 1 

 

 
5. The city shall not issue permits for construction  of any new swimming  pool unless 

the  pool  is  to  be  supplied  with  water  other  than  treated  water  supplied  by  the  
city. Customers are encouraged to fill existing pools from water other than treated 
water. 

 
6. The  city  shall  make  plans  for  implementation  of  a  water  shortage  disaster  plan, 

which shall include provisions for: 

a.  Emergency water stations; 
 
b.    Acquisition of private property under the right of eminent domain, with immediate 
possession to alleviate the emergency; and 

 
c.   Application for relief assistance from county, state, and federal sources. 

 
7.   The city council shall give notice to any customer that has a terminable contract with 
the department (whereby the department is the supplier) that such contract will be 
terminated upon implementation of Phase III by the city council. 

 
8.   If the declaration of a Phase II emergency appears reasonably imminent, the city 
council shall cause a Water Advisory Board to be formed consisting of one city council 
member, one planning commissioner, one winery customer, and two public members, 
one of whom shall be solely a residential customer.  The Director of Public Works shall 
be an ex officio member of this board. Unless the city council otherwise directs, the 
board will disband when the water emergency is no longer in effect. The Water Advisory 
Board shall have access to all records in the possession of the Water Enterprise necessary 
in its judgment to perform its duties, including customer records.   The Board shall 
maintain the confidentiality of individual customer records unless the Board determines 
by resolution that release of such information is necessary in the pursuit of its duties. 

 
D.    In addition to the mandatory measures defined in Band C of this Section, customers 
of the department and members of the community are encouraged to do the following: 

 
1.    Reduce all indoor water use to not more than an average of seventy-five (75) gallons 
per person per day within the residence, including single-family residences, apartments, 
condominiums, townhomes, and mobile homes. 

 
2.      Reduce indoor water use in the work places and commercial establishments by a 
minimum of ten percent (10%) from customary consumption. 

 
3.  Eliminate or defer all non-essential water use such as topping-off swimming pools. 

 
4.    All schools, social and professional groups, churches, etc., are encouraged to discuss 
water conservation as a regular agenda item and to forward worthwhile suggestions to the 
department for consideration. 

 



8 

ITEM NO. 9  ATTACHMENT 1 

 

5.   All  sites  with  irrigated  landscapes  or  gardens  are  encouraged  to  establish  the 
following irrigation practices: 
a.  Turn off irrigation systems during the non-irrigation season. 

 
b.    Encourage customers to invest in SMART controllers or equivalent water-saving 
devices to control the operation of outdoor sprinkler systems. 

 



 

STAFF REPORT 
OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 
 DATE: September 9, 2014 
 

 TO: Mayor Nevero and City Council 
 

 FROM:  Steve Palmer – Interim Public Works Director 
  Kathy Robinson – Senior Management Analyst  
 

 RE: Accepting the Work and Directing the Filing of the Notice of Completion for CIP 
Project W-42 Supervisory Control and Data System (SCADA) Upgrade and 
Modifications 

 

 

BACKGROUND 
City Council adopted Capital Improvement Plan – Update 2011 on June 28, 2011, granting 
approval for W-42 Supervisory Control and Data Systems (SCADA) Upgrade and 
Modifications project. The scope of the project was to replace the existing remote telemetry 
units (RTU) and upgrade the telemetry system. 

Per St. Helena Municipal Code 3.04.210 Bidding Procedures for various project amounts that 
shall be increased automatically as authorized pursuant to the adjustments made by the 
California Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Commission under Public Contracts Code 
Section 22020. (Ord. 01-14 (part): prior code § 2.92.020)22032 which states that public projects 
of $175,000 or less may be let to contract by informal procedures as set forth in this article.  

Under St. Helena Municipal Code 3.04.230 Section B 4. Proprietary Products or Services, a 
proposal was obtained and awarded to Glenmount Global Solutions given their proprietary 
expertise and familiarity of the Water Treatment Plant’s existing SCADA system.   

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 

The City Engineer and Chief Water Treatment Plant Operator are satisfied as to the actual 
completion of the work. With the report, the City Engineer hereby advises the City Council 
that the work is completed and ready for acceptance and the City Council directs the City 
Clerk to file a Notice of Completion. 

 

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION 
Approve the resolution. 

 
ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS 

1. Resolution 2014-    Accepting the Work and Directing the Filing of the Notice of 
Completion for CIP Project W-42 Supervisory Control and Data System (SCADA) 
Upgrade and Modifications. 

2. Notice of completion. 

Item No. 10 

KathyR
Typewritten Text

KathyR
Typewritten Text



Item. 10 Attachment 1 

 

 Page 1 of 2                                                                                                   RESOLUTION NO.  2014-XX 

 
 

CITY OF ST. HELENA 

RESOLUTION NO.  2014-XX 

ACCEPTING THE WORK AND DIRECTING THE FILING 
OF THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR CIP PROJECT 
W-42 SUPERVISORY CONTROL AND DATA SYSTEM 
(SCADA) UPGRADE AND MODIFICATIONS  

RECITALS 
 

A. City Council adopted Capital Improvement Plan – Update 2011 on June 28, 2011, granting 
approval for W-42 Supervisory Control and Data Systems (SCADA) Upgrade and 
Modifications project; and   

B. Per St. Helena Municipal Code 3.04.210 Bidding Procedures for various project amounts 
that shall be increased automatically as authorized pursuant to the adjustments made by the 
California Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Commission under Public Contracts Code 
Section 22020. (Ord. 01-14 (part): prior code § 2.92.020)22032 which states that public 
projects of one hundred seventy-five thousand dollars or less may be let to contract by 
informal procedures as set forth in this article; and 

C. Under St. Helena Municipal Code 3.04.230 Section B4. Proprietary Products or Services, a 
proposal was obtained and awarded to Glenmount Global Solutions in the amount of 
$101,635 given their proprietary expertise and familiarity of the Water Treatment Plant’s 
existing SCADA system; and 

D. Glenmount Global Systems has notified the City Engineer of the completion of the work, 
and the City Engineer is satisfied as to the actual completion of the work and advises the 
City Council that the work is completed and ready for acceptance. 

 

RESOLUTION 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of St. Helena resolves as follows:  

1. The work performed by Glenmount Global Systems under the subject contract is accepted. 

2. The City Clerk is directed to file the Notice of Completion for CIP Project W-42 
Supervisory Control and Data system (SCADA) upgrade and modifications within ten (10) 
days after acceptance. 

 

Approved at a Regular Meeting of the St. Helena City Council on September 9, 2014 by the 
following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers  
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:  None 



APPROVED:      ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ ___________________________ 
Ann Nevero      Cindy Black
Mayor       Interim City Clerk 



Page 1 of 2 

Item No.10 Attachment 2 
 

Recording Requested By:  

   City of St Helena  
   1480 Main Street  
   St Helena, CA 94574  

Exempt From Recording Fees Per 
Government Code Sec. 27383 

 

When Recorded Mail To:  

   City Clerk  
   City of St. Helena  
   1480 Main Street  
   St. Helena, CA  94574  
 SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDERS USE ONLY 
 
 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT: 

1 The undersigned is an owner of an interest of estate in the hereinafter described real 
property, the nature of which interest or estate is: fee simple.   

2 The full name and address of the undersigned owner and of any and all co-owners are: 
 

Name Street and No. City State 
City of St Helena 1480 Main Street St Helena CA 
    

 

3 On the______ day of _______, 2014, there was completed upon the hereinafter 
described real property a work of improvement as a whole and described as follows: CIP W-42 
Supervisory Control and Data Systems (SCADA) Upgrade and Modifications. 
4 The name of the original contractor for the work of improvement as a whole 
was: Glenmount Global Systems, 8925 Sterling St., Suite 265, Irvington, TX 75063. 
5 The real property herein referred to is situated in the City of St Helena, County of Napa, 
State of California, and described as follows: St. Helena Water Enterprise Water Treatment 
Plant. 
6 The street address of the property is: 410 Crystal Springs Road, St. Helena, CA 94574. 

 
 

By:  
 Owner’s Authorized Agent’s Signature – Sign Before Notary 

 Jennifer Phillips, City Manager 
  



Page 2 of 2 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF NAPA 
 

 

           On __________________________________________, (date), before 
me, Cindy Black, Interim City Clerk (name and title of officer), personally 
appeared Jennifer Phillips, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence 
to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), 
or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that 
the foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Signature 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

THIS PAGE  

INTENTIONALLY  

BLANK 



STAFF REPORT 

  
 

OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 
  
DATE: September 9, 2014 
  

TO: Mayor and City Council      Item No: 11 

   

FROM: Steve Palmer, Interim Director of Public Works 
Kathy Robinson, Senior Management Analyst  

   
RE: Approve Resolution Finding an Exemption from CEQA; Approving and Adopting the 

Plans, Specifications and Working Details; and Authorizing the Bid Request for 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Pond 1A Repair Project. 

 

BACKGROUND 
Per Order No. R2-2010-0105, Table 8, Task 1(a), the City was required to restore the treatment 
capacity of Pond 1A. On April 24, 2012, City Council approved Resolution No. 2012-29 
authorizing Brelje & Race to prepare bid documents for the removal of biosolids at the 
wastewater treatment plant. On June 12, 2012, City Council approved Resolution No. 2012-41 
finding the wastewater treatment plant biosolids removal project exempt from CEQA, approved 
the plans, specification and working details, and authorize the request for bids. On August 14, 
2013 City Council approved Resolution No. 2012-66 rejecting all bids as it was brought to the 
City’s attention by Upper Valley Waste Management (UVWM) that under the franchise 
agreement waste agreement sludge fell under the definition of waste, therefore UVWM could 
remove the biosolids. The City Attorney and Director of Public Works agreed with the 
assessment and under the existing franchise waste JPA contract, the work was completed by 
UVWM mid October 2012. 
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
Wastewater staff working with engineering consultants determined that additional maintenance 
repairs are required to restore the integrity of the liner. Pond 1A is a primary treatment pond 
which had been in continuous service since its original construction in 1967.  Pond 1A Repair 
Project includes minor improvements to the pond, removal of submerged baffle walls, and re-
construction of the clay liner.  The construction project is expected to take approximately 30-
days to complete. City staff recommendation is to authorize the project for solicitation of bids 
and commence construction in advance of this year’s wet weather season as provided for in the 
St. Helena Municipal Code, Chapter 3.04 Article 3, Public Works Projects. 

The plans and specification are available for review on the City’s website and a hard copy at City 
Hall. 



 

ITEM NO. 11  ATTACHMENT 1 

\\SH\Data\Admin\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Staff Reports\09-09-2014\11.2 Pond 1A Clay Liner Repair RESO 09-09-2014.docx 

Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF ST. HELENA 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-___ 
 

FINDING THE PROJECT EXEMPT FROM CEQA; 
ADOPTING THE PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND 
WORKING DETAILS; AND AUTHORIZING THE BID 
REQUEST FOR WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
POND 1A REPAIR PROJECT  

RECITALS 
A. On April 24, 2012, City Council approved Resolution No. 2012-29 authorizing Brelje & 

Race to prepare bid documents for the removal of biosolids at the wastewater treatment plant; 
and  

B. On June 12, 2012, City Council approved Resolution No. 2012-41 finding the wastewater 
treatment plant biosolids removal project exempt from CEQA, approved the plans, 
specification and working details, and authorize the request for bids; and   

C. On August 14, 2013 City Council approved Resolution No. 2012-66 rejecting all bids as it 
was brought to the City’s attention by Upper Valley Waste Management (UVWM) that under 
the franchise agreement waste agreement sludge fell under the definition of waste, therefore 
UVWM could remove the biosolids. The City Attorney and Director of Public Works agreed 
with the assessment and under the existing franchise waste JPA contract, the work was 
completed by UVWM mid October 2012; and 

D. Wastewater staff working with engineering consultants determined that additional 
maintenance repairs are required to restore the integrity of the liner; and 

E. Pond 1A Repair Project includes minor improvements to the pond, removal of submerged 
baffle walls, and re-construction of the clay liner; and   

F. City staff has requested the authorization to solicit construction bids pursuant to Municipal 
Code, Chapter 3.04 Article 3, Public Works Projects. 

RESOLUTION 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of St. Helena resolves as follows:  

1. The project is categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act, pursuant 
to CEQA Guidelines section 15301, Existing Facilities Class 1 which exempts the operation, 
repair, maintenance, and permitting of existing facilities involving negligible or no expansion 
of use including publically owned utilities used to provide sewerage services; an 

2. The plans, specifications and working details, available online and for viewing at City Hall, 
1480 Main Street, are hereby approved; and 

3. The City Engineer is authorized to solicit bids for the subject project. 

Approved at a Regular Meeting of the St. Helena City Council on September 9, 2014 by the 
following vote: 



AYES:  
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
 

APPROVED:      ATTEST: 

___________________________ ___________________________ 
Ann Nevero      Cindy Black 
Mayor       Interim City Clerk 



KathyR
Typewritten Text
ITEM NO. 11  ATTACHMENT 2



 

STAFF REPORT 
OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 
 DATE: September 9, 2014 
 

 TO: Mayor Nevero and City Council 
 

 FROM:  Steve Palmer – Interim Public Works Director 

  Kathy Robinson – Senior Management Analyst  
 

 RE: Resolution Approving Amendment No. 1 for additional on-call consulting services 
with Bennett Engineering Services related to the Wastewater Treatment Plant Pond 
1A regulatory assistance, field investigation and construction support.  

 

 

BACKGROUND 

Pond 1A is a primary treatment pond which had been in continuous service since its original 
construction in 1967. On June 10, 2014, under St. Helena Municipal Code Section 2.93 
Professional Services, City Council approved Resolution 2014-3 authorizing a negotiated 
contract with Bennett Engineering Services for on-call consulting services to perform 
specialized engineering services for Pond 1A design improvements, regulatory assistance and 
technical expertise not to exceed $30,000. 

After the biosolids removal and piping improvements were made, Wastewater staff working 
with engineering consultants determined that additional maintenance repairs are required to 
restore the integrity of the liner.    

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 

In order to complete project design and construction, the City requires additional services 
for field investigation, regulatory compliance support and engineering support during 
construction. Bennett Engineering Services has submitted a proposal to amend their existing 
contract to include these services. Staff has reviewed and evaluated the proposal received 
and reaffirms that Bennett Engineering has the skills, expertise and qualifications to provide 
the desired on-call services.  

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION 

Approve the resolution. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The amendment for additional on-call contracting services under this agreement will not exceed 
$50,000 and will be funded by budgeted Wastewater Enterprise Funds for a total amended contract 
amount not to exceed $80,000.  
 
ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS 

1. Resolution 2014-    Approving Amendment No. 1 for additional on-call consulting 
services with Bennett Engineering Services related to the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Pond 1A regulatory assistance, field investigation and construction support. 

Item No. 12 



 

2. Scope of Services 



Item No. 12  Attachment 1 

\\SH\Data\Admin\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Staff Reports\09-09-2014\12.2 RESO BenEn On-Call SVCS 09-09-2014.docx 

CITY OF ST. HELENA 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-__ 

APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 1 FOR ADDITIONAL ON-CALL 
CONSULTING SERVICES WITH BENNETT ENGINEERING 
RELATED TO THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT POND 1A 
REGULATORY ASSISTANCE, FIELD INVESTIGATION AND 
CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT 

A. Pursuant to the terms of the written Agreement between City and Consultant, 
approved by Resolution 2014-35 under St. Helena Municipal Code 2.93.030  
Professional Services on June 10, 2014, the City entered into a Professional Services 
Agreement with Bennett Engineering Services, for on-call consulting services to perform 
specialized engineering services for Pond 1A design improvements, regulatory assistance and 
technical expertise not to exceed $30,000; and  

B. After the biosolids removal and piping improvements were made, Wastewater staff working 
with engineering consultants determined that additional maintenance repairs are required to 
restore the integrity of the liner; and  

C. Staff determined that that additional services for field investigation, regulatory compliance 
support and engineering support during construction were needed. Staff requested and 
Bennett Engineering responded with a proposal for additional on-call services; and 

D. City and Consultant desire to amend the Agreement to provide additional on-call 
consulting services to perform specialized engineering services for Pond 1A design 
improvements, regulatory assistance and technical expertise. 

RESOLUTION 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of St. Helena resolves as follows:  

1. Amendment No. 1 in the amount of $50, 000 to the Agreement for Consultant 
Services with Bennett Engineering Services is hereby approved.  

2. The total amended contract not to exceed $80,000. 

Approved at a Regular Meeting of the St. Helena City Council on September 9, 2014 by 
the following vote: 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 

APPROVED:      ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ ___________________________ 
Ann Nevero      Cindy Black 
Mayor       Interim City Clerk 



 

EXHIBIT B:  Additional Scope of Services 
 

To:                   Jennifer Phillips, City Manager 

Client: City of St. Helena  
Consultant: Bennett Engineering Services, Inc.  
Project: On Call Consulting Services – Resolution No. 2014-35  
Date: September 3, 2014  
 

In accordance with the On Call Consulting Services Agreement between the City of St. Helena (Client) and 
Bennett Engineering Services, Inc. (Consultant), dated June 10, 2014, Consultant is authorized to complete the 
additional work scope defined herein. 

BACKGROUND 

Recent work performed at the City of St. Helena’s wastewater treatment and reclamation facility (WWTRF) 
included draining a primary treatment pond (Pond 1A) for sludge removal, yard piping improvements, and re-
commissioning of the treatment pond.  Bennett Engineering Services (BEN|EN) was retained under an on-call 
consultant agreement to assist with design improvements to Pond 1A, regulatory permit assistance, and provide 
additional technical expertise for the wastewater treatment and disposal facilities.   

As part of this process, the City has requested additional work as follows: 
• Field investigative work in Pond 1A to determine the extents of liner damage and failure method.   
• Construction Phase Engineering support services during the Pond 1A Repair Project 
• Continued support in City’s correspondence with and compliance reporting to the RWQCB. 

We have prepared this additional work scope and budget at the request of City staff.    

WORK SCOPE 

All work will be performed under the direction of the City Manager or acting Public Works Director. 

Pond Liner Field Investigation  

BEN|EN and its sub-consultants will perform field investigation work in the existing empty pond as part of the 
overall remediation work for Pond 1A.  Services will include: 

• Topographic survey of pond bottom and interior berms 
• Soil testing (core sampling) to determine extent of original clay pond bottom and underlying strata 

A report of findings will be provided upon completion of the field investigation and analysis.   

C:\Users\mwheeler.BENEN\Documents\p14201-ExB2 Scope.docx  

 Page 1 of 2 

KathyR
Typewritten Text

KathyR
Typewritten Text
ITEM 12  ATTACHMENT 2

KathyR
Typewritten Text



Jennifer Phillips, City Manager  Exhibit B:  Additional Scope of Services 
City of St. Helena  On Call Consulting Services – Resolution No. 2014-35 

Construction Phase Engineering Support 

BEN\EN will provide Construction Phase support services for the Pond 1A Repair Project, including: 
• Respond to Contractor requests for information (RFIs) 
• Conduct Pre-Bid meeting and job walk 
• Review and respond to Contractor submittals 
• Conduct construction Kickoff Meeting 
• Conduct milestone inspections, final inspection, and prepare final punch list 
• Prepare Record Drawings based on field as-built notes 

BEN|EN will act as a resource to City administrative and operations staff for the Pond 1A Repair Project 
construction, testing, start-up, and re-commissioning. 

RWQCB Correspondence and Compliance Reporting Support  

BEN|EN will assist City staff and consultants during upcoming compliance reporting and correspondence with 
the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) during and following the Pond 1A Repair activities. 

UNDERSTANDINGS Not to Exceed $ 50,000 

The costs for Consultant’s services will be billed on a time and materials basis according to the 2014 billing rate 
sheet attached.  The labor and direct costs associated with this additional work shall not exceed $50,000 without 
written authorization from the Client.  If additional funds are required to complete requested services beyond 
this limit, Consultant shall notify Client in writing prior to reaching the authorized limit, and will not proceed 
with work in excess of the limit without written approval of the Client. 

Attachments: 2014 Billing Rate Schedule 

 BEN|EN 

C:\Users\mwheeler.BENEN\Documents\p14201-ExB2 Scope.docx Page 2 of 2 



 

THIS PAGE  

INTENTIONALLY  

BLANK 



Affordable for sale unit - Intent to Sell 
1641 Voorhees Circle 

September 9, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

DATE:  September 9, 2014 
 

 TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

 FROM:  Jennifer Phillips, City Manager          ITEM NO: 13 
 

 RE: Consideration/action regarding notice of intent to sell the affordable housing unit at 
1641 Voorhees Circle and direction as to whether the City desires to exercise its 
option to purchase said property. 

 

 

BACKGROUND: 
On July 31, 2014, the City received notice from St. Helena’s affordable housing agency, the 
Housing Authority of the City of Napa (“Housing Authority”) that the home owners of 1641 
Voorhees Circle in St. Helena intend to sell their home. The home is a single-family, owner-
occupied affordable housing unit in the Wallis Subdivision. The owners, James and Brittany 
Eyer have lived in the home since 2009. 
 
DISCUSSION / ANALYSIS: 
As an owner-occupied affordable housing unit, 1641 Voorhees Circle was sold to the current 
owner (“Owner”) subject to a Resale Restriction Agreement and Option to Purchase 
(“Agreement”). The Agreement provides that if Owner no longer wishes to occupy or own the 
home, the City of St. Helena has first option to purchase the property before the owner attempts 
to market and sell the home to an income-qualified buyer. If the City decides not to exercise this 
option, then the home must be sold to an income-qualified buyer at a price set by the Agreement 
at either fair market value or the restricted sales price, whichever is lower. The restricted sales 
price is $319,114.00. The sale of the property would be subject to another agreement to continue 
restricting resale under similar terms, all intended to keep the home as an affordable housing 
unit.  
 
In the attached letter dated July 31, 2014, the Housing Authority recommends that the City, 
consistent with past practice, not exercise its purchase option, and instruct the owner to proceed 
with marketing their home to an eligible buyer. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
If the City exercises its option, the City will pay $319,114.00, plus any costs associated with 
close of escrow according to the terms of the Agreement. Additional costs may be incurred with 
amending and recording the regulatory agreements to include the provisions of the Local 
Preference Policy and any costs associated with the resale to an income-qualified buyer 
identified through implementation of the preference policy. The City does not have uncommitted 
funds available to purchase the house. 
 



Affordable for sale unit - Intent to Sell 
1641 Voorhees Circle 

September 9, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

 

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council, consistent with the recommendation of the Housing 
Authority, not exercise its option to purchase the property and instruct the owner to proceed to 
market their home to an eligible purchaser. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Letter from City of Napa Housing Authority dated July 31, 2014 



KathyR
Typewritten Text
ITEM NO. 13  ATTACHMENT 1





 
Item No: 14 

 

 

 
 
Agenda Section: Scheduled Matters 

Subject: Consideration of Resolution appointing and filling expired terms to 
the Library Board of Trustees, Parks and Recreation Commission, 
Planning Commission and the Tree Committee 

    Prepared By: Cindy Black, Interim City Clerk 

 Authorized By: Jennifer Phillips, City Manager 

   Approved By: Jennifer Phillips, City Manager 

 

BACKGROUND 
Due to annual Boards and Commission term expirations and recent amendments to the terms and 
protocol, staff recently advertised to fill the June 30, 2014 expired seats.  The expired terms were 
extended until the amendment and recruitment process was completed.  The Boards and 
Commissions that have expired terms include the Library Board of Trustees, Parks and 
Recreation Commission, Planning Commission and the Tree Committee.   
 
DISCUSSION 
Library Board of Trustees 
Library Board of Trustee members Norma Ferriz, Susan Swan and Bonnie Long’s terms expired 
June 30, 2014.   Appointments are made by the Mayor and subject to the City Council’s 
approval.  Applications were received from all incumbents as well from Lin Weber, Bob Dye, 
and Terry Wood. 
 
Parks and Recreation Commission 
Parks and Recreation Commission members Chris Cutler, Jeannie Kerr and Tracy Smith’s terms 
expired June 30, 2014.  Appointments are made by the Mayor and subject to the City Council’s 
approval.  Applications were received from incumbent Chris Cutler and Tracy Smith.  Other 
applicants include Rebecca Martin, Matthew Demchuk, Kim Phinney, Christine Talley and 
Stephanie Iaconacco. 
 
Planning Commission 
Planning Commission member Grace Kistner’s term expired June 30, 2014.  Appointments are 
made by the Mayor and subject to the City Council’s approval.  Applications were received from 
the incumbent and Hector Lopez. 

Report to the City Council 

Council Meeting September 9, 2014 
 



 
Item No: 14 

 
Tree Committee 
Tree Committee members Susann Ortega and Kellie Carlin’s terms expired June 30, 2014 plus 
an additional alternate vacancy.  Appointments are made by the Mayor and subject to the City 
Council’s approval.  Applications were received from both incumbents and Joan Westgate. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None9* 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Library Board of Trustees – There are three expired terms.  Appoint two applicants to a one 
year term and one applicant to a two year term to fulfill the term staggering process. 
 
Parks and Recreation Commission – There are three expired terms.  Appoint one applicant to a 
one year term and two applicants to a two year term to fulfill the term staggering process. 
 
Planning Commission - There is one expired term.  Appoint one applicant to a four year term. 
 
Tree Committee - There are three seats available which includes two expired terms and one 
alternate vacancy.  Appoint two applicants to fill the expired terms and appoint one applicant to 
fill the vacant alternate position. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Resolution Appointing/Re-Appointing Members to expired and vacant terms 
2. Applications for appointment 

 



 ITEM NO. 14  ATTACHMENT 1 

 
CITY OF ST. HELENA 

RESOLUTION NO.  2014- 
 

 
APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE 

ST. HELENA BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES,  
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION, 

TREE COMMITTEE AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

RECITALS 
 
A. Existing vacancies exists on the St. Helena Library Board of Trustee, Parks and Recreation 

Commission, Planning Commission and Tree Committee.   

B. Applications have been received from applicants for the various openings.  Protocol calls for 
appointments to be made by the Mayor and approval by the City Council. 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of St. Helena resolves as follows:  

Library Board of Trustees 
1. The Mayor hereby appoints _______________ and _______________ to the St. Helena 

Library Board of Trustee for a one year term expiring on June 30, 2015. 

2. The Mayor hereby appoints _______________ to the St. Helena Library Board of 
Trustee for a two year term expiring on June 30, 2016. 

Parks and Recreation Commission 
1. The Mayor hereby appoints _______________ to the St. Helena Parks and Recreation 

Commission for a one year term expiring on June 30, 2015. 

2. The Mayor hereby appoints _______________ and _______________ to the St. Helena 
Parks and Recreation Commission for a two year term expiring on June 30, 2016. 

Planning Commission 
1. The Mayor hereby appoints _______________ to the St. Helena Planning Commission 

for a four year term expiring on June 30, 2018. 

Tree Committee 
1. The Mayor hereby appoints _______________ and _______________ to the St. Helena 

Tree Committee for a two year term expiring on June 30, 2016. 

2. The Mayor hereby appoints _______________ as an alternate to the St. Helena Tree 
Committee for a two year term expiring on June 30, 2016. 



  Attachment 1 

 
 

Approved at a Regular Meeting of the St. Helena City Council on September 9, 2014, by the 
following vote: 
 
AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 
APPROVED:      ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ ___________________________ 
 Ann Nevero       Cindy Black 
 Mayor        Interim City Clerk 
 
 



Name Home Business Comments

1. Lin Weber

2. Bob Dye

3. Norma B. Ferriz de Massaro

4. Bonnie Long

5. Terry Wood

6. Susan Swan

Library Board of Trustee Applicants

(Two available positions)

Contact Numbers

cindyb
Highlight

cindyb
Highlight

cindyb
Highlight

cindyb
Typewritten Text
*Incumbent names are highlighted.

KathyR
Typewritten Text
ITEM NO. 14  ATTACHMENT 2







































Name Home Business Comments

1. Rebecca Martin

2. Matthew Demchuk

3. Chris Cutler

4. Kim Phinney

5. Christine F. Talley

6. Tracy Smith

7. Stephanie Iaconacco

Parks and Recreation Commission Applicants

(Three available positions)

Contact Numbers

cindyb
Highlight

cindyb
Typewritten Text
*Incumbent name is highlighted









































Name Home Business Comments

1. Hector F. Lopez

2. Grace Kistner

Planning Commission Applicants

(One available position)

Contact Numbers

cindyb
Highlight

cindyb
Typewritten Text
*Incumbent name is highlighted 















Name Home Business Comments

1. Joan Westgate

2. Susan M. Ortega

3. Kellie Carlin

Tree Committee Applicants
(Two available Positions)

Contact Numbers

cindyb
Highlight

cindyb
Highlight

cindyb
Typewritten Text
*Incumbent names in yellow

cindyb
Typewritten Text



R£Cfl"ED 

j\)l '}, C;) 1(}\4 

S'fllEL~NA 
ciT~ ov · 

CITY HAIL, 1480 MAIN STREET 
ST. HELENA, CALIFORNIA 94574 

(707) 967-2792 
www.sthelenacity .com 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 
Note: Your application will be copied for the City Council and made available to the press 
and public. 

~Commission to which you are applying: 

~ & l'Jf!rrd?-2£: 
Name: 

__ _Joan Wa'stgate 
Home Address: ---~1~5'hi2~Q1-1Pi,.n~'~~~l8a-H9tr~t~ee...,t~-----------

St. Helena, CA 94574 
Mailing Address: ---------------- - ------

Occupation: ---~-B---~.15=-.::.1T-_l-f(~:e~D""""'--------------

E-mail: 

Please indicate if above numbers can be ~ available to the public upon request: ';k~ I) JlTf'1 
Are you a resident of St. Helena? __ I~ how long have you lived in St. Helena? .E5J/I.(e_a )Cf b9' 

Previous Committee/Commission Experience/: 

... 

Education/Experience: A resume may be attached containing this and any other information 
that would be helpful in evaluating your application. 



Local government related experience: - - ------- - ------

Please explain your reasons for wishing to serve on this committee/commission and how 

you feel th~~ou may conbibute . di ~ 
~;jf~~ 4V . #' 
(lf &XkPfJ£--1 t:;;JfJ,$ 

Names, addres~phone numbers of-three inttls familiar with-your-background: 

=~=J:£~:¥2  
Appointments to this position may require you to file a Conflict of Interest Disclosure 
Statement, which is of public; r:ecord. · . 

If you have any questions regarding the appointment procedure, please telephon the City 
Clerk at (707) 967-2742. 

Please return the completed application to: 
City of St. Helena 

City Clerk 
1480 Main Street 

St. Helena, CA, 94574 



APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 
Note: Your application will be copied for the City Council and made available to the press 
and public. 

Committee/Commission To Which You Are Applying: 

r~ee A b\11 $(JYI..."/ co 111\ r;·i,7TtJL 

Name: s vs A AJW M. 0 fl. rEG It 

Home Address: 1 r ( {. Jt.. ~ • . 

Mailing Aa oress: P.-a-:--ll-Gx-&>-tt--;-s-T-1-(. 

Occupation: Gr~t.ph•'c. l>l{l in t y' 

Business Address: I 4' C, n. 1 iL ~ #J.. Avt SI:' 1-1 

Home Telephone:     ' Business Telephone:    

E-mail : s "' s-;;) ., )'\ 0 1\.. re ' It @ L~IH,A.\7 . JJ 6T 

Please indicate if above numbers can be made available to the public upon request: Ml 
Peen. P~"- , c A 

Are you a resident of St. Helena? _ If yes, how long have you lived in St. Helena? _ 

Current occupation (within last 12 months)--------- -----

011.TE'-A w1ilL LA/ltL OeJt~ 

Business interests in last 12 months: ------------------------
IN•~ .. PQc,/c.~~··"~ , Co'"m,_..;,,1) GAvdut 

Previous Committee/Commission Experience: 

rn. Ee A 0 VI ~crY':' '-G M N il rru.. 

Education/Experience: A resume may be attached containing this and any other information 
I 

that would be helpful in evaluating your application. 

M 1-: A - "'"', "'' ,;s '111 ,v e ~~ ttA s tc::A-



Professional and/or community service activities: ~ 0 1 1 
• 2. 0 1 '+ . 

Fovni&r ... ~ll,.f"tni en.u'ul.orrTof s rJ./tlll!l\ ComMIIn'*, §A~ 111C· 
NAOA IIAalt\( Wlri'\ Allif,i).,· A;T.$t ce,ii:~-,,;,_,pr,.S..-•" ; ~C~V( 
D~~•C.A~t..t L..o'0''1 +r~v- L"c.~L St"06t,TI\t(h.,, t'\vu"&u 
Local government related experience:----.,..------------

.St""""" Cl'f'\ "Tit fe (\ciVIlii~'S (.OM ~-;n U.. 

Please explain your reasons for wishing to serve on this committee/commission and how you 
feel that you may contribute . · 
1 CAm <omm ilt~ t\ ~Uo!\111...-. Cd~\ 'r S'T Ht.lt .• ~~ tru. ~mMJlrtA. 

1\ \il" NS ·' Mi ~S•tn - i \ 7a ProTt..c,1 5" f..lt.hra~ s t..u\8 ln lova. ~7 
o.~cA Pt't~\V"Vt.1t. '""s (v{l(l~,. Slffi~ (M "Jn.ee. Cit, u.~.A.M~~. 

Appointments to this position may require you to file a Conflict of Interest Disclosure 
Statement, which is of public record 

''-r t,.()' 
Date 

If you have ai'Q' questions regarding the appointment procedure, please telephone the City 
Clerk at (707) 967-2792. 

Please return the completed application to: 
City of St. Helena 

City Clerk 
1480 Main Street 

St. Helena, CA, 94574 



CITY HALL, 1480 MAIN STREET 
ST. HELENA, CALIFORNIA 94574 

(707) 967-2792 
www.sthelenacity.com 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 
Note: Your application will be copied for the City Council and made available to the press 
and public. 

C ·u.--lCo · · whi h p.e I · OmmiLUN!' ~on to c you areJIPP ymg: 

Tfe~F1tl11i ttev 
Name: l::::d.J, 'c., C tJ ,.f,· 'l 

Home Address: /11 V Adt:AJ'rvs Sf: s.u 
' r t ~A~: ______ r_. ______________________________ __ 

Occupation: }..a+4sc~ dew·~ 
Business Address: jamt cv5 h~ n--.& 

Home Telephone:1D1, qh'j .. 5? J q Business Telephone:   

E-mail: _---~:L-:~p. _c__;a.!,_r_J;(\~GL-_me.. __ . -=(;)~fl?_:_:_ ________________ =----
9 oJL Wt- ul ( 

Please indicate if above numbers can be made available to the public upon requesY- Nor c~ I -
Are you a resident of St. Helena? 'fo- If yes, how long have you lived in St. Helena? .!if_'J<- t«....-s 

Currentoccupation(withinlast 12months) ~Afl..Jsc~r~ tb.n't= -fred~ 

Business interests in last 12 months: _!N~v.\ ____________ _ 

Previous Committee/Commission Experience: 

~ Cotw ,..,J;J;c;; 

Education/Experience: A resume may be attached containing this and any other information 
that would be helpful in evaluating your application. 



Local government related experience:---------------

Please explain your reasonS for wishing to serve on this committee/commission and how 
you feel that you may contribute 

would litl. ~ lvJ12 ~(Ja.rd hf&J fvt~ <Jrrd ,nat1c£. fo 
f/MeU- mare. 1 fye;/5',·11 5Jd 

I 

Appointments to this position may require you to file a Conflict of Interest Disclosure 
Statement, which is of public record 

Signature of Applicant 

If you have any questions regarding the appointment procedure, please telephone the City 
Clerk at (707) 967-27 42. 

Please return the completed application to: 
City of St. Helena 

City Clerk 
1480 Main Street 

St. Helena, CA, 94574 



 

THIS PAGE  

INTENTIONALLY  

BLANK 

KathyR
Typewritten Text



Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments –  Chapter 17.124 
August 26, 2014 

City Council 

STAFF REPORT 
 

 DATE: September 9, 2014 
 

 TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

 FROM:  Victor Carniglia, Interim Planning Director                      Item No: 15 
    

RE:   Preliminary review of Conceptual Plans submitted by Carl Doumani for a Resort 
Hotel (“The Inn at St Helena”) consisting of 84 Hotel Rooms, proposed to be located 
on a 5.93 Acre parcel, along with agricultural  uses on adjacent parcels consisting of  
4.11 Acres, for a total of 10.04 Acres.  The Site is Located North of Mills Lane and 
East of Hwy 29  

 

 

SUMMARY:  
The proposed 84 room resort hotel is being brought to City Council for a “Preliminary Review”.  
This is not an entitlement action, and will not grant the property owner any development rights.  
The purpose of this “Preliminary Review” is for the City Council to provide feedback to the 
property owner at a very early stage on the acceptability of a resort hotel at the proposed 
location, and to get preliminary comments from the Council on the conceptual hotel plans 
submitted.  This review is not a noticed public hearing, and Council should neither limit the 
Planning Commission’s review of the project once formal applications are submitted nor 
prejudge the merits of the application.  No resolution of approval or denial is being provided as 
part of this preliminary review. Rather, the applicant is seeking guidance on design and other 
issues.  It should also be emphasized that any comments made by the Council concerning a hotel 
at this location are “non-binding”, as the Council does not have the benefit of any of the various 
environmental and other impact analysis that will need to be prepared for any future entitlement 
request.  
 
In this report City staff provides City Council with the following; 1) a brief history of the subject 
property, 2) a description of what is being proposed, 3) a summary of the relevant City General 
Plan, Zoning, and related regulatory requirements, 4) a listing of infrastructure improvements 
that will need to be addressed, 5) a preliminary estimate of the fiscal benefits of the proposed 
hotel, and 6) a list “flagging” key issues that will ultimately need to be addressed with any future 
entitlement submittal.  
 
The report concludes with a summary of the Planning Commissions comments on the 
preliminary hotel plans submitted.  The Planning Commission on September 2, 2014 reviewed 
the same preliminary plans being presented to City Council. 
 
1) Site History 
 
The following is a brief history of past planning related actions concerning the subject property: 
 



• In 2006 the owner received approval of a Parcel Map dividing the site into four separate 
parcels. 

• In 2008 approval was granted to construct an approximately 20,000 sq ft office building on 
the parcel designated as 3A on the included plans.  These buildings were to be affiliated with 
St. Helena Hospital, but were never constructed. 

• In 2010 the property owner requested entitlements to build up to 80,000 sq ft of office space, 
along with a development agreement.  Neither the plans for the office nor the development 
agreement were ultimately approved. 

• In June 2014 the property owner met with staff on the concept of developing a resort hotel on 
the subject site.   

• In July 2014 a “Preliminary Review” application was submitted to the City for a hotel on the 
site. 

• On September 2, 2014 the Planning Commission provided comments on the proposed hotel 
plans.   
 

2) Project Description: 
 
Overview: Conceptual plans for the proposed hotel are included in the packet, and contain 
conceptual site plans, floor plans, and building elevations.  The plans at this stage in the process 
are “broad brushed”.  When an entitlement application is submitted, the plans will be much more 
detailed. 
 
The proposed “destination” resort hotel, referred to as the “Inn at St. Helena”, contains 84 
individual guest units, a gym and spa facility, a swimming pool, and a restaurant.  The buildings 
will be keeping with the architectural character of the older farm houses in St Helena.  The 
grounds will consist of low water landscape, rural walkways, and gathering areas.  For all the 
features and amenities proposed, the project has a relatively low development intensity, with a 
floor area ratio (FAR) of just under 25%.  The applicant has stated the hotel will be positioned at 
the high end of the hotel market, and that the specific hotel developer/operator will become 
directly involved with the project as part of any future entitlement process. 
 
Proposed Hotel:  The 84 unit hotel is proposed on Parcels 3A and 4A, which totals 5.93 acres.  
The 84 hotel units would be developed in one and two story structures.  The majority of the hotel 
rooms would be in two story structures (64 units), with the remaining 20 units in single story 
buildings. The two story buildings will be located toward the center of the hotel site, with the 
lower single story near the edges to create a transition in height.  On the northern edge of the 
hotel site, which is located closest to the existing single family homes to the north, the majority 
of the buildings are single story to minimize visual impacts. The individual hotel units 
themselves are large, with each having an area of 850 sq ft.  
 
It is important to note that Parcel 1A, which will be occupied by agricultural uses, including a 
single family home, barn, and vineyards, serves as an approximately 175 foot wide “buffer” 
between the proposed hotel and the existing single family homes to the north.   
 



Agricultural Uses:  Parcel 1A, which consists of 2.53 acres, will be developed with vineyards, 
along with a single family home and a barn.  Parcel 2, which fronts Hwy 29, is proposed to be 
kept entirely in agricultural use and developed with vineyards.   
 
3) General Plan, Specific Plan, And Zoning Consistency 
 
Land Use Designations: The 10 gross acre site has both Service Commercial and Agricultural 
General Plan and Zoning Designations.  Currently the parcel shown as 1A is designated as 
Agricultural along with the northern portion of Parcels 3A and 4A, for a total of 3.6 acres 
currently designated  Agricultural.  The southern portions of Parcels 3A and 4A are designated as 
Service Commercial, as is all of Parcel 2 which fronts on Hwy 29, for a total of just over 6 acres 
of Service Commercial.   The .4 acre balance of the site is the future right of way for the 
widening of Mills lane. 
 
The property owner is seeking to “reconfigure” the General Plan and Zoning designations on the 
site, with the provision that the total amount of Agricultural and Service Commercial will remain 
the same. The amount of Agricultural acreage in the northern  portion of the property is proposed 
to be reduced by about 1.6 acres, with a corresponding increase in Agricultural land on the 1.6 
acre Parcel 2 fronting Hwy 29. This “reconfiguration “ will either require a zoning amendment or 
could potentially be accomplished with a zoning and General Plan consistency finding, given the 
total acreages of the Service Commercial and Agricultural designations are not changing.  It 
should be noted that as part of this “reconfiguration “ process consistency with the Urban Limit 
Line will need to be addressed.  
 
A hotel is allowed with a use permit in the Service Commercial Zone.  The uses proposed for the 
areas designated as Agricultural, namely vineyard, the single family home, and barn are 
consistent with the Agricultural Designation. 
 
Zoning Development Standards: The layout of the proposed hotel meets the required setbacks 
and other development standards of the Service Commercial zoning.  The two story height of the 
proposed hotel structures is consistent with the 35 foot height limit.  The Service Commercial 
zoning require a use permit if a building for a non retail use exceeds 10,000 sq.ft. in area.  It 
appears from the conceptual plan submitted that the buildings do not exceed the 10,000 sq.ft  
threshold per building..  
 
Highway 29 Specific Plan: The proposed use of a hotel is consistent with the 2005 Highway 29 
Specific Plan.  The EIR prepared for the Specific Plan will likely be able to be used in preparing 
the environmental documentation for the proposed hotel, as will the infrastructure analysis 
contained in the Specific Plan.   
 
4) Infrastructure Improvements: 
 
Road Improvements:  Mills Lane will need to be reconstructed, widened, and realigned to line 
up with Grayson Avenue on the west side of Hwy 29.  This will need to be done in conjunction 
with the development of a hotel on the site.  Crossing arms will need to be concurrently  built at 
the Wine Train tracks.  A traffic signal is planned to be constructed at the Hwy 29 /Grayson 
Intersection next year.  A new “leg” will need to be added to this signal to accommodate the 



realignment of Mills Lane.  The hotel project, as part of any future entitlement process, will be 
required to pay for its fair share of needed infrastructure improvements. 
 
Drainage Improvements:  The southern portion of the site, including the Mills Lane/La Fata 
Street intersection, currently experiences periodic flooding.  This situation is expected to worsen 
once additional storm drain pipes are extended under Hwy 29 in the vicinity of Mills lane as part 
of the upcoming Hwy 29 CALTRANS work.  As part of any entitlement application, the 
applicant will need to prepare and submit a plan to address this flooding issue, along with 
addressing how clean water requirements will be met. 
 
5) Fiscal Implications: 
 
Hotels can generate significant Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) for a City.  This is also a tax the 
City is not required to share with other agencies, with the result that almost all of tax the revenue 
stays local.  Preliminary estimates of the projected TOT revenue to the City from a hotel of the 
type and size proposed are in the range of $1.5 million to $1.9 million per year, but can be higher 
or lower depending on the average room rate and occupancy.  As part of any future entitlement 
process for the hotel, it would be appropriate for the City to prepare a much more detailed fiscal 
analysis taking into account the City costs to serve the hotel, as well as other revenue sources 
beyond TOT, such as sales tax and property tax.  Another factor to be taken into account in a 
fiscal analysis would be the additional tax revenue that could be expected to be generated by 
hotel guests shopping and dining in the City.  
 
6) Specific Issues To Be Addressed In Future Entitlement Process: 
 
As the Council is aware, before any decision can be made on granting actual development 
entitlements, a significant amount of information will need to be prepared and presented to the 
City.  Such information typically includes detailed environmental reports, traffic studies, visual 
and noise analysis, water neutrality reports, etc.  This section of the report lists the type of 
information that will need to be generated as part of a future entitlement process.  This list is not 
intended to be limiting, and the City will likely add items as part of any future entitlement: 
 
• While an initial Study will not be completed until an entitlement application is submitted, 

given the scope, scale and location of the project a Project Level EIR or detailed Mitigated 
Negative Declaration will almost certainly be required, although an EIR is more likely 
building off of the Highway 29 Specific Plan EIR. 

• Fire Department concern about the accessibility of the exteriors of the buildings will need to 
be addressed.  The standard is all building exteriors must be within a maximum of 150 feet 
from where fire apparatus has access.  On site fire hydrants will be required.   

• On site runoff will need to be contained to meet the current Clean Water requirements. 
• The plans do not show project related landscaping on “Parcel 2”.  Given that Parcel #2 is the 

“window” to the project, it would be appropriate to consider appropriate “entry” landscaping 
and signage on Hwy 29 and Mills Lane.  

• The issue of the Mills Lane rail crossing will need to be addressed.  A protected rail crossing 
will need to be designed, installed, and coordinated with the Wine Train, CAL TRANS, and 
possibly the CPUC.. 



• The sewer capacity of the lines serving the site will need to be verified. 
• Water neutrality will need to be demonstrated 
• All signage needs to be included with future applications. 
• The City has a “cap” on the number of restaurants and hotel rooms. Either the proposed 

restaurant will need to be determined to be ancillary to the hotel use, or a request to raise the 
restaurant and hotel “cap” will need to be submitted with the entitlement request. 

• Given the preservation of the Ag land on Parcel 1A, privacy and view impacts should be 
reduced or possibly eliminated on the existing homes located to the north of the site.  An 
analysis of view, noise,  and privacy impacts needs to be addressed in the project’s 
environmental documentation.. 

• The future traffic signal and Mills Land and Hwy 29 will need to be redesigned from a 3 way 
to 4 way signal. 

• Detail needs to be provided concerning the proposed “barn” and single family home on 
Parcel 1A. 

• Access to the adjacent Vet Hospital will need to be coordinated and preserved. 
 
Planning Commission Comments on Conceptual Hotel Plans: 
 
As previously noted, the Planning Commission, on September 2, 2014, reviewed the same 
conceptual hotel plans currently before City Council.  The following is a summary of the 
comments made by Commissioners at this September 2 meeting: 
 

1. The hotel plan needs to address Dr. Gold’s driveway needs/concerns.  
2. The Hwy 29 Specific Plan applies to the site. 
3. The importance of the site as a “gateway” into the City. 
4. Consistency with the Urban Limit line will need to be addressed. 
5. It is important to have a hotel manager that lives on site. 
6. Consider providing some housing for hotel labor force, either on or off site. 
7. Support for planting vineyards.  Keep vineyards adjacent to Highway 29, and the 

importance of the landscaping on the Hwy 29 frontage for the project and the City.  
8. That a conservation easement or similar mechanism be used to preserve the project’s 

agricultural land. 
9. Use drought friendly landscaping, avoid use of lawns. 
10. Concerns over possible air pollution created by solid fuel fireplaces. 
11. Have a water conservation plan to capture/retain precipitation to be used for irrigation. 
12. The depletion of groundwater is an issue given the possible use of existing on site water 

wells. 
13. Concerns about the ability of the proposal to meet the City’s water neutrality 

requirements. 
14. Project needs to address any potential privacy impacts on adjacent uses. 
15. Consider the implementation of a tax on the project, possibly 1%,  to offset cost of 

government services to the site. 
16. Will events on site at the hotel be open to the public?   
17. Will the proposed restaurant, spa, and other amenities be open to the public? 
18. Traffic concerns, impacts on flow of traffic on Hwy 29. 
19. The plan needs to be designed accommodate cyclists/pedestrians. 



20. General support for exploring a hotel at this important location. 
21. That the hotel provide guests with transportation/shuttle service to town and local 

wineries. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive the presentation by the property owner, and any 
comments from the public, and then provide general comments to the property owner concerning 
the proposed hotel and agricultural related uses.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Conceptual plans for the proposed hotel. 
2. Backen Gillam Kroeger Letter 

 



KathyR
Typewritten Text
ITEM 15  ATTACHMENT 1



Porch

Bath

Shower
Courtyard

Foyer

Bedroom

Wc

Tub

Dressing

Garden

C
Up

C

G

G

EE

AA

FF

BHD

BHD

CC

G

G

EE

AA

F F

B

D BH

HD

Tv

Window
Seat

Floor Plan
One Unit @ 850 s.f.

Building Elevations

Roof Plan

Elevation A-A

Elevation B-B

Elevation C-C

Elevation D-D

Section E-E

Section F-F

Section G-G

Section H-H

Building Sections

2 
3 

5 
2 

   
M

 A
 R

 I 
N

 S
 H

 I 
P 

  W
 A

 Y
S 

A
 U

 S
 A

 L
 I 

T 
O

  C
 A

 L
 I 

F 
 9

49
65

T 
E 

L 
E 

P 
H

 O
 N

 E
   

 4
15

  2
89

  3
86

0
F 

A
 C

 S
 I 

M
 I 

L 
E 

   
  4

15
  2

89
  3

86
6

1 
0 

2 
8 

   
M

  A
  I

  N
   

S 
 T

  R
  E

  E
  T

S 
T.

  H
 E

 L
 E

 N
 A

  C
 A

 L
 I 

F 
 9

45
74

T 
E 

L 
E 

P 
H

 O
 N

 E
   

 7
07

  9
67

  1
92

0
F 

A
 C

 S
 I 

M
 I 

L 
E 

   
  7

07
  9

67
  1

92
4

T
h
e
s
e
 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t
s
 
a
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y

o
f
 
B

a
c
k
e
n
 
G

i
l
l
a
m

 
K

r
o
e
g
e
r
 
A

r
c
h
i
t
e
c
t
s
.

A
n
y
 
u
n
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
e
d
 
u
s
e
 
w

i
t
h
o
u
t
 
t
h
e

w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
p
r
o
h
i
b
i
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
l
a
w

.

B
a
c
k
e
n
 
G

i
l
l
a
m

 
K

r
o
e
g
e
r
 
A

r
c
h
i
t
e
c
t
s

d
i
s
c
l
a
i
m

s
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t
s
 
i
f
 
u
s
e
d
 
w

h
o
l
e
 
o
r
 
i
n
 
p
a
r
t
 
a
t

a
n
y
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
.

B
   

A
   

C
   

K
   

E
   

N

M
ill

s 
L

an
e,

 S
ai

nt
 H

el
en

a 
C

A
 9

45
74

a 
 r

  c
  h

  i
  t

  e
  c

  t
  s

C
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
©
 
2
0
1
4
 
b
y

B
A

C
K

E
N

 
G

I
L
L
A

M
 
K

R
O

E
G

E
R

 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
S

7
/
2
2
/
1
4

 
S

:
\
2
0
1
4
\
2
0
1
4
0
7
 
-
 
R

u
s
s
e
l
l
 
-
 
M

i
l
l
s
 
L
a
n
e
\
I
n
n
 
a
t
 
S

a
i
n
t
 
H

e
l
e
n
a
 
A

2
_
1
A

.
d
w

g

SCALE :

Plot Date

Drawn By

Checked By

Project No.

Date Issue

In
n 

at
 S

ai
nt

 H
el

en
a

AS NOTED

A2.1A



CC

AA

BD

BD

E

B

Main Level Floor Plan
Two Units @ 552 s.f.

Building Sections

Building Elevations

Upper Level Floor Plan
One Unit @ 422 s.f.

CC

AA

BD

BD

Bedroom

Porch

Wc Tub/Shower

Outdoor Shower

Bath

FoyerFoyer

Porch

Bath

Tub/Shower Wc

Outdoor Shower

Bedroom

UpUp

Up

GardenGarden

ClosetCloset

Fire

Porch

Fire

Porch

GardenGarden

E

E

Bedroom

Shower

Bath WcBathWc

FoyerFoyer

Bedroom

Down

Shower

BenchBench

Roof Below

Roof Below

Roof Below

Roof Below

Books Below Window

FireFire

ClosetCloset

Planter Box

Roof Below

Books Below Window

Planter Box

Elevation A-A

Elevation B-B

Elevation C-C

Elevation D-D

Section E-E

CC

AA

BD

BD

E

E

2 
3 

5 
2 

   
M

 A
 R

 I 
N

 S
 H

 I 
P 

  W
 A

 Y
S 

A
 U

 S
 A

 L
 I 

T 
O

  C
 A

 L
 I 

F 
 9

49
65

T 
E 

L 
E 

P 
H

 O
 N

 E
   

 4
15

  2
89

  3
86

0
F 

A
 C

 S
 I 

M
 I 

L 
E 

   
  4

15
  2

89
  3

86
6

1 
0 

2 
8 

   
M

  A
  I

  N
   

S 
 T

  R
  E

  E
  T

S 
T.

  H
 E

 L
 E

 N
 A

  C
 A

 L
 I 

F 
 9

45
74

T 
E 

L 
E 

P 
H

 O
 N

 E
   

 7
07

  9
67

  1
92

0
F 

A
 C

 S
 I 

M
 I 

L 
E 

   
  7

07
  9

67
  1

92
4

T
h
e
s
e
 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t
s
 
a
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y

o
f
 
B

a
c
k
e
n
 
G

i
l
l
a
m

 
K

r
o
e
g
e
r
 
A

r
c
h
i
t
e
c
t
s
.

A
n
y
 
u
n
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
e
d
 
u
s
e
 
w

i
t
h
o
u
t
 
t
h
e

w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
p
r
o
h
i
b
i
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
l
a
w

.

B
a
c
k
e
n
 
G

i
l
l
a
m

 
K

r
o
e
g
e
r
 
A

r
c
h
i
t
e
c
t
s

d
i
s
c
l
a
i
m

s
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t
s
 
i
f
 
u
s
e
d
 
w

h
o
l
e
 
o
r
 
i
n
 
p
a
r
t
 
a
t

a
n
y
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
.

B
   

A
   

C
   

K
   

E
   

N

M
ill

s 
L

an
e,

 S
ai

nt
 H

el
en

a 
C

A
 9

45
74

a 
 r

  c
  h

  i
  t

  e
  c

  t
  s

C
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
©
 
2
0
1
4
 
b
y

B
A

C
K

E
N

 
G

I
L
L
A

M
 
K

R
O

E
G

E
R

 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
S

7
/
2
2
/
1
4

 
S

:
\
2
0
1
4
\
2
0
1
4
0
7
 
-
 
R

u
s
s
e
l
l
 
-
 
M

i
l
l
s
 
L
a
n
e
\
I
n
n
 
a
t
 
S

a
i
n
t
 
H

e
l
e
n
a
 
A

2
_
1
C

.
d
w

g

SCALE :

Plot Date

Drawn By

Checked By

Project No.

Date Issue

In
n 

at
 S

ai
nt

 H
el

en
a

AS NOTED

A2.1C











 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Design Discussion Request For:  

Inn at Saint Helena 
1000 Mills Lane 
Saint Helena, CA 94574 
      
 

Project Description: 

The Inn at Saint Helena is proposed as a resort destination consisting of 84 individual guest 
cottages, a gym and spa facility, a swimming pool, and a restaurant on two Service Commercial 
parcels (parcels 3A and 4A), and a single Caretaker’s Unit and Ag Barn on the A20 parcel (parcel 
A1). 
 
In keeping with the character of the older farmhouses in Saint Helena, the buildings will be 
simple and agricultural in nature. The grounds of the Inn will consist of low water use landscape, 
rural walkways, and gathering areas. The Inn will be similar in nature to Solage in Calistoga, but 
at a smaller scale.   
 
For all the features and amenities proposed, the entire development is contained on 8.46 acres of 
mixed-zone land, and has a floor area ratio of 24%. The Inn is proposed as a low density, low 
profile addition to the rural small town nature of Saint Helena.   
 
Thank you for your consideration.  
 
 
 
Edmund Juncker,  
Project Manager 
Backen Gillam Kroeger Architects 

KathyR
Typewritten Text
ITEM NO. 15 ATTACHMENT 2

KathyR
Typewritten Text

KathyR
Typewritten Text


	0. AGENDA 09-09-2014 FINAL
	Blank Page

	8 Second Reading Driveway Requirement
	8.1 Second Reading Driveway Requirment STAFF REPORT 9-9-14
	Staff Report

	8.2 Second Reading Driveway Requirment ORDINANCE 9-9-14

	9. Second Reading water shortage emergency ordinance
	9.1 Second Reading water shortage emergency ordinance.Staff Report
	Staff Report

	9.2 Second Reading water shortage emergency ordinance

	10. SCADA Notice of Completion and Acceptance 09-09-2014
	10.1 Staff Report SCADA Notice of Completion and Acceptance 09-09-2014
	Staff Report

	10.2 RESO W-42 Notice of Completion SCADA
	CITY OF ST. HELENA
	RESOLUTION NO.  2014-XX
	ACCEPTING THE WORK AND DIRECTING THE FILING OF THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR CIP PROJECT W-42 SUPERVISORY CONTROL AND DATA SYSTEM (SCADA) UPGRADE AND MODIFICATIONS
	RECITALS



	10.3 Notice of Completion 09-09-2014
	NOTICE OF COMPLETION

	Blank Page

	11 Pond 1A Full Report
	11 Pond 1A Full Report
	11.1 Pond 1A Clay Liner Repair STAFF REPORT 09-09-2014
	Staff Report

	11.2 Pond 1A Clay Liner Repair RESO 09-09-2014
	CITY OF ST. HELENA
	RESOLUTION No. 2014-___
	FINDING THE PROJECT EXEMPT FROM CEQA; ADOPTING THE PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND WORKING DETAILS; AND AUTHORIZING THE BID REQUEST FOR WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT POND 1A CLAY LINER REPAIR
	RECITALS




	11.3 Pond 1A Notice of Exemption
	Blank Page

	12. SCADA
	12 BenEn On-Call SVCS 09-09-2014
	Staff Report

	12.2 RESO BenEn On-Call SVCS 09-09-2014
	CITY OF ST. HELENA
	RESOLUTION NO. 2014-__
	APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 1 FOR ADDITIONAL ON-CALL CONSULTING SERVICES WITH BENNETT ENGINEERING RELATED TO THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT POND 1A REGULATORY ASSISTANCE, FIELD INVESTIGATION AND CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT


	12.3 SCOPE OF SVCS 09-09-2014

	13. 1641 Voorhees
	14.1 1641_voorhees_circle_intent_to_sell_cc_STAFF_REPORT_09-09-2014
	Staff Report
	UBACKGROUNDU:
	UDISCUSSION / ANALYSISU:
	UFISCAL IMPACTU:
	URECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTIONU:
	Staff recommends that the City Council, consistent with the recommendation of the Housing Authority, not exercise its option to purchase the property and instruct the owner to proceed to market their home to an eligible purchaser.
	UATTACHMENTSU:
	1. Letter from City of Napa Housing Authority dated July 31, 2014

	14.2 1641_voorhees_circle_intent_to_sell_cc_082614.3319_001 1

	14. Boards and Commission
	13.1 Boards and Commissions Staff Report
	13.2.Boards and Commission Appointments Resolution
	CITY OF ST. HELENA
	RESOLUTION NO.  2014-
	APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE
	ST. HELENA BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES,
	RECITALS



	13.3 .Boards and Commission Applicants
	1.Library Board of Trustees_Redacted Copy
	2.Parks and Recreation Commission_Redacted Copy
	3.Planning Commission_Redacted Copy
	4.Tree Committee.Redacted Copy

	Blank Page

	15. Inn at St. Helena
	15.1 Inn at St. Helena staff report_final-attny-edited
	Staff Report

	15.3 Inn at St. Helena attachment 1
	073014 Mills Lane-A1_1 Rendering02
	Inn at Saint Helena A2_1A
	Inn at Saint Helena A2_1C
	Inn at Saint Helena (perspectives)
	Walking Path_Color
	Courtyard Perspective_Color
	Courtyard Perspective2_Color
	Pool Side_Color2


	15.3 Inn at St. Helena attachment 2




